
Dunes City Hall is accessible to the disabled. If special accommodations are needed, please contact the City Recorder at 
541-997-3338 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting so that appropriate assistance may be arranged. 

 
Phone (541) 997-3338 • Fax (541) 997-5751 • PO Box 97, Westlake, OR 97493 

82877 Spruce St • www.dunescity.com 
1 of 2 

Dunes City Council ~ Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, August 8, 2018 ~ 6:00 pm 
The meeting will adjourn not later than 9:00 pm. If agenda items are  
not completed, the meeting will continue the next Wednesday at 6:00 pm.  
 
 

AGENDA 
 
1. Call to Order……………………….…………………….. Mayor Robert Forsythe 
2. Roll Call ………………………………………………….. City Administrator 
3. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag………………………… Mayor Robert Forsythe 
4. Motion to Approve the Agenda.................................................. Action Item 
5. Consent Agenda………………………………………………… Action Item 
 
All items listed here are considered to be routine by the Dunes City Council and will be enacted by one motion.   There will be no 
separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be removed from the consent agenda and considered. 
 
 A. City Council Regular Meeting Minutes from July 11, 2018 
 B. City Council Special Session Minutes from July 19, 2018 
 C. Bills of the Session through July 31, 2018 
 D. Receipts of the Session through July 31, 2018 
  
6. Announcements / Correspondence 
 
 A. The Citizens Advisory Committee meeting regarding final review of 
  the first three sections of Chapter 155 of the Dunes City Code is scheduled 
  for August 20, 2018, at 5:00 p.m. 
 
 B. The next Planning Commission meeting is scheduled for  
  Thursday, August 23rd, at 5:00 p.m. 
 
 C. The deadline to submit petitions for election as City Councilor or Mayor is  
  4:00 p.m. on August 23, 2018.  Please get your petitions in as soon as possible! 
 
7. Citizen Input on Items not listed on the Agenda 
 
 Maximum time 20 minutes: Speakers will be limited to three minutes. If the number wishing to testify exceeds seven speakers, each 
 speaker’s time may be reduced to fit within 20 minutes. 
 
8. New Business 
 
 A. Lane County Animal Services IGA…………………. Discussion/Action Item 
 
 B. Set values of unimproved roadways ………………… Discussion/Action Item 
 
 



Dunes City Hall is accessible to the disabled. If special accommodations are needed, please contact the City Recorder at 
541-997-3338 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting so that appropriate assistance may be arranged. 

 
Phone (541) 997-3338 • Fax (541) 997-5751 • PO Box 97, Westlake, OR 97493 

82877 Spruce St • www.dunescity.com 
2 of 2 

 
9. Executive Session  
 
 A. Held pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(h) to consult with counsel concerning the legal  
  rights and duties of a public body with regard to current litigation or litigation likely  
  to be filed. 
 
10. Old Business 
 
 A. Any decision relating to items discussed in  
  Executive Session ……………………………………… Discussion/Action Item 
 
11. Reports 
 
 A. Mayor’s Report…………………………………………. R. Forsythe 
 B. Community Center Report……………………………… D. Wells 
 C. Water Quality Report .…………………………………. S. Meyer 
 D. Public Works Maintenance Supervisor’s Report………. R. Palmer 
 E. Emergency Services Report……………………………. J. Mills 
 F. City Administrator/Recorder/Planning/Staff Report…… J. Mills 
 
12. For the Good of the Order 
 
13. Adjournment 
 
The meeting will adjourn not later than 9:00 pm. If agenda items are not completed, the meeting will continue on the following Wednesday at 6:00 
pm. 



Dunes City 

City Council Meeting Minutes ~ Draft 

RO/20180711  Page 1 of 10 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES ~ DRAFT 

JULY 11, 2018 AT 6:00 PM 

City Hall ~ 82877 Spruce St., Westlake, OR 

 

 

 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER  

 

Mayor Robert Forsythe called the Wednesday, July 11, 2018, meeting of the Dunes City  

Council to order at 6:03 pm.  

 

2. ROLL CALL 

 

Roll Call was taken by City Administrator/Recorder Jamie Mills. 

 

Present: Mayor Robert Forsythe, Council President Sheldon Meyer, Councilor Alan 

Montgomery, Councilor Susan Snow, Councilor Duke Wells, Councilor Tom 

Mallen, and Councilor Robert Orr.  

 

Absent and Excused: None. 

 

Also Present: Administrative Assistant Rapunzel Oberholtzer, several Dunes City  

 residents and Siuslaw News reporter Jared Anderson.  

 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

All who were present stood for the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

4. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 

Council President Meyer made a motion to approve the Agenda. The motion was  

seconded by Councilor Orr. The motion passed by unanimous vote. 
 

5. APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Councilor Orr made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda. Councilor Mallen  

seconded the motion. The motion passed by unanimous vote. 

 

6. ANNOUNCEMENTS / CORRESPONDENCE 

 

City Administrator/Recorder Mills read from the list of announcements on the Agenda: 

 

These proceedings of the Dunes City Council were 

recorded and are on file at Dunes City Hall. Upon 

approval by the City Council, these minutes will be 

available online at www.DunesCity.com  



Dunes City 

City Council Meeting Minutes ~ Draft 

RO/20180711  Page 2 of 10 

A. On July 17, 2018, Dunes City is hosting a FEMA workshop on common problems, 

suggested solutions and best management practices related to construction of residential 

structures on the Pacific Northwest Coast. The workshop is from 8:30 am to 4:00 pm. 

 

B. The Citizens Advisory Committee meeting regarding the first three sections of Chapter 

155 of the Dunes City Code is scheduled for July 23, 2018, at 5:00 pm. The CAC is 

nearing completion of their review of these sections. 

 

C. The next Planning Commission meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, July 25, at 5:00 

pm. (00:03:43) 

 

7. NEW BUSINESS 

 

A. Volunteer of the Year – Presentation of Award  

 

Mayor Forsythe presented the 2018 Volunteer of the Year Award to Stan and Ann  

Anderson, managers of Boy Scout Camp Baker, and thanked them for all they’ve done to 

support Dunes City.  

 

B. Schedule Council Work Session to Discuss Water Issues 

 

Following discussion, it was agreed to schedule the Work Session for Thursday, July 19, 

beginning at 6:00 pm. 

 

C. Ordinance No. 247, amending Chapter 155 of the Dunes City Code requiring marijuana-

related businesses to apply for a Conditional Use Permit and establishing conditions that 

must be met; providing for an effective date of November 7, 2018 – First Reading 

 

Mayor Forsythe announced, “A proposed Ordinance requires two readings before it is en-

acted. City Charter Section 34(3) provides that both readings may be read by title only (a) 

if no Council member present at the meeting requests it be read in full or (b) if a copy of 

the Ordinance is provided for each member and all requirements for posting and adver-

tisement have been met.” He asked if any Councilor wished to have the Ordinance read in 

full. None did. 

 

Councilor Montgomery made a motion to read the Ordinance by title only. The  

motion was seconded by Councilor Orr. The motion passed by unanimous vote. 

 

Mayor Forsythe read aloud the title of Ordinance No. 247, “An Ordinance amending  

Section 155.2.1.111 to add marijuana producers to the list of Conditional Uses that require 

a Conditional Use Permit in the R-1 Zone; adding a new Section 155.2.1.270 to add  

Special Standards that recreational marijuana producers and recreational marijuana pro-

duction must meet in the R-1 Zone; adding new provisions to terminate any Conditional 

Use Permit granted under the terms of this Section 155.2.1 upon any change of use or 

ownership of the real property for which the Conditional Use Permit was granted; amend-

ing Section 155.2.2.111 to add recreational marijuana processors to the list of Conditional 



Dunes City 

City Council Meeting Minutes ~ Draft 

RO/20180711  Page 3 of 10 

Uses that require a Conditional Use Permit in the Community Commercial District; add-

ing a new Section 155.2.2.220 to add Special Standards that must be met for recreational 

marijuana processors in the Community Commercial District, adding new provisions to 

terminate any Conditional Use Permit granted under the terms of this Section 155.2.2  

upon any change of use or ownership of the real property for which the Conditional Use 

Permit was granted; correcting formatting errors and other matters related thereto.” 

 

8. Public Hearing and Deliberation on Ordinance No. 247 
 

A. Ordinance No. 247, amending Chapter 155 of the Dunes City Code; requiring marijuana-

related businesses to apply for a Conditional Use Permit and establishing conditions that 

must be met; providing for an effective date of November 7, 2018 – Second Reading and 

Deliberation 

 

Mayor Forsythe read from a script prepared for the public hearing, “This evening we have 

a public hearing on Ordinance No. 247.” 

 

“These proceedings will be recorded. 

 

“This hearing will be held in accordance with the land use procedures required by the City 

and the State of Oregon. This is a Type IV Legislative Procedure. 

 

“Staff will identify the applicable substantive criteria which have also been listed in the 

staff report. These are the criteria the City Council must use in making its decision. All 

testimony and evidence must be directed toward these criteria or other criteria which you 

believe apply to the decision. Failure to raise an issue accompanied by statements or  

evidence sufficient to afford the City and parties involved an opportunity to respond to the 

issue would preclude an appeal to the Oregon Land Use Board of Appeals based on that  

issue. 

 

“Any party interested in a land use matter may challenge the qualification of any  

Councilor to participate in such hearing and decision. Such challenge must state facts re-

lied upon by the party relating to a Councilor’s bias, prejudgment, conflict of interest, or 

other facts from which the party has concluded that the Councilor will not make a decision 

in an impartial manner.” 

 

Mayor Forsythe asked if any member of the Council wished to declare a conflict of inter-

est, bias or ex-parte contact. None did. (00:14:25) 

 

Mayor Forsythe opened the public hearing for the proposed Ordinance at 6:18 pm and 

asked for the Staff Report. 

 

Administrative Assistant Rapunzel summarized the proposed Ordinance, “Ordinance No. 

247 amends Title XV of the Dunes City Code by adding new language to Chapter 155, 

Sections 155.2.1 and 155.2.2 regarding recreational marijuana producers and processors. 

“Recreational Marijuana Producers” will be added to the uses in the R-1 district that re-



Dunes City 

City Council Meeting Minutes ~ Draft 

RO/20180711  Page 4 of 10 

quire a Conditional Use Permit and “Recreational Marijuana Processors” will be added to 

the uses in the Community Commercial district that require a Conditional Use Permit. 

New Sections will be added to list standards (in addition to all other Conditional Use Per-

mit requirements) with which recreational marijuana producers must comply in the R-1 

district, and standards (in addition to all other Conditional Use Permit requirements) with 

which processors must comply in the Community Commercial district.” (00:16:10) 

 

Rapunzel provided a history of marijuana-related discussions in Dunes City, noting that in 

early 2017 three OLCC LUCSs were submitted to the City and approved, which resulted 

in many comments from citizens questioning the approvals and prompting lengthy discus-

sion at City Council and Planning Commission meetings about City Code and processes. 

She explained that the citizen comments prompted the Planning Commission to discuss 

changing City Code and, in the meantime, the Council adopted Ordinance No. 245 which 

prohibited any future marijuana business applications and referred the question of whether 

or not Dunes City should ban all new marijuana businesses to the voters on the November 

general election ballot. (00:17:18) 

 

Rapunzel went on to explain that the Planning Commission and the CAC crafted the lan-

guage in Ordinance No. 247 with the intent that, should the ballot question fail, the City 

would have some control over new marijuana businesses attempting to locate in Dunes 

City. She noted that the biggest concerns expressed by citizens were that citizens knew 

nothing about the applications, had no notice of their approvals and had no input into 

whether or not the applications should have been approved. Ordinance No. 247 attempts to 

address all of those citizen concerns by using the Conditional Use Permit process that re-

quires neighbors be notified of CUP applications, notice of Planning Commission and City 

Council public hearings be published and citizens be allowed to comment during the hear-

ings. (00:18:00) 

 

Mayor Forsythe asked Councilors if they had questions for Staff. Councilor Wells noted 

that the proposed Ordinance provides a process for the City if the ban fails. (00:18:40) 

There was some discussion about the proposed requirements for marijuana producers and 

processors in addition to those already set out in Chapter 155 conditional use require-

ments. City Administrator/Recorder Mills explained that the proposed requirements are 

for the Conditional Use Permit application, which would be reviewed by the Planning 

Commission to determine whether or not the application materials were adequate. 

(00:20:15)  

 

There was a discussion about the definition of “marijuana” in the proposed ordinance and 

whether or not the term should include stalks, fiber, oil or cake, etc. as written on pages 2 

and 4. There was also some discussion about the process of applying for a Conditional 

Use Permit and the notices and hearings that were required before a CUP could be ob-

tained. There was some discussion about amending language on pages 2 and 4 to strike 

“not” from the second sentence (“It does not include the stalks of the plant…”). (00:32:47) 

 

Mayor Forsythe announced that the Council would hear testimony from those who wished 

to testify in favor of or opposed to the proposed ordinance. No one signed in to offer  



Dunes City 

City Council Meeting Minutes ~ Draft 

RO/20180711  Page 5 of 10 

testimony and no written comments were submitted. Mayor Forsythe closed the public 

hearing at 6:37 pm. 

 

Mayor Forsythe explained that the Council could a) approve the Ordinance, b) approve the 

Ordinance with amendments, or c) not accept the Ordinance based on findings of fact or 

other information identified by the Council but not included in the Staff Report/Findings 

of Fact.  

 

Council President Meyer made a motion to accept the Staff Report and Findings of 

Fact. Councilor Montgomery seconded the motion. The motion passed with four 

votes in favor and one opposed. (00:35:48) 

 

Mayor Forsythe announced that he would entertain a motion to amend the language of 

Ordinance 247 as presented. 

 

Councilor Mallen made a motion to amend Ordinance 247 on page two and four un-

der the definition of marijuana, second sentence, strike the word “not.”  
 

There was no second and the motion failed. 

 

Council President Meyer made a motion to read Ordinance 247 by title only. The 

motion was seconded by Councilor Orr. The motion passed by unanimous vote. 
 

Mayor Forsythe read aloud the title of Ordinance No. 247 for the second time, “An Ordi-

nance amending Section 155.2.1.111 to add marijuana producers to the list of Conditional 

Uses that require a Conditional Use Permit in the R-1 Zone; adding a new Section 

155.2.1.270 to add Special Standards that recreational marijuana producers and recrea-

tional marijuana production must meet in the R-1 Zone; adding new provisions to termi-

nate any Conditional Use Permit granted under the terms of this Section 155.2.1 upon any 

change of use or ownership of the real property for which the Conditional Use Permit was 

granted; amending Section 155.2.2.111 to add recreational marijuana processors to the list 

of Conditional Uses that require a Conditional Use Permit in the Community Commercial 

District; adding a new Section 155.2.2.220 to add Special Standards that must be met for 

recreational marijuana processors in the Community Commercial District; adding new 

provisions to terminate any Conditional Use Permit granted under the terms of this Section 

155.2.2 upon any change of use or ownership of the real property for which the Condi-

tional Use Permit was granted; correcting formatting errors and other matters related 

thereto.” 

 

Councilor Montgomery made a motion to amend Ordinance 247 by deleting the 

word “not” from the definition on page four and page two. Councilor Orr seconded 

the motion. 
 

There was a discussion about the definition of “marijuana” in the producer and processor 

sections of the proposed ordinance. Planning Commission Chairman Bonnie Allen, who 

was present in the audience, explained that the Planning Commission had followed state-



Dunes City 

City Council Meeting Minutes ~ Draft 

RO/20180711  Page 6 of 10 

recommended definitions and guidelines to keep the language as simple as possible but 

still give the City control over marijuana-related activities. She went on to note that if the 

Planning Commission had concerns or questions about a marijuana business CUP applica-

tion, those concerns and questions would be addressed during the application hearing  

process. (00:44:45) Councilor Mallen disagreed with keeping the word “not” noting that 

stems, seeds, etc. were, in fact, marijuana. Councilor Montgomery changed his mind about 

deleting “not” noting that the excluded parts were not parts of marijuana that contained 

THC.  

 

The motion failed by a vote of four to one. (00:50:56) 

 

Council President Meyer made a motion to accept the wording of Ordinance 247 as 

written. Councilor Orr seconded the motion. In a roll call vote, Council President 

Meyer and Councilors Snow, Montgomery, Wells, and Orr voted in favor. Councilor 

Mallen voted against the motion. 
 

Mayor Forsythe declared Ordinance No. 247 adopted, noting that its effective date would 

depend on the outcome of the November general election votes. (00:52:25) 

 

9. OLD BUSINESS 
 

A. Resolution No. 7A, correcting scrivener errors in Resolution No. 7 adopted June 13, 2018 

 

City Administrator/Recorder Mills reminded Councilors that they adopted Resolution No. 

7 to amend the City Charter of Dunes City at last month’s meeting, and explained that 

Resolution No. 7A corrected the wording of the Ballot Title to fit within the State’s max-

imum number of words allowed.  

 

Councilor Orr made a motion to accept the amended wording. Councilor Mallen  

seconded the motion. The motion passed by unanimous vote. 

 

B. Resolution No. 8A, correcting scrivener errors in Resolution No. 8 adopted June 13, 2018 

 

City Administrator/Recorder Mills reminded Councilor that they adopted Resolution No. 8 

to ask voters to approve a $.005 per thousand dollars of property value at last month’s 

meeting. She explained that the State rejected the Summary Statement she submitted and 

Resolution No. 8A corrects the Summary Statement to meet State requirements. 

 

Councilor Orr made a motion to accept the change in wording. Council President 

Meyer seconded the motion. The motion passed by unanimous vote. (00:55:09) 

 

 

 

 



Dunes City 

City Council Meeting Minutes ~ Draft 

RO/20180711  Page 7 of 10 

C. Ordinance No. 248 amending Chapter 120 of the Dunes City Code of Ordinances entitled 

“Business Licenses” to apply to all businesses doing business within the City Limits with 

exceptions – Second Reading 

 

Following some discussion, Councilors proceeded with the public hearing. 

 

10. PUBLIC HEARING AND DELIBERATION ON ORDINANCE NO. 248 
 

A. Ordinance No. 248 amending Chapter 120 of the Dunes City Code of Ordinances entitled 

“Business Licenses” to apply to all businesses doing business within the City Limits with 

exceptions 

 

Mayor Forsythe opened the public hearing on Ordinance No. 248 at 7:04 pm. He went on 

to announce that, “These proceedings will be recorded,” and read from a prepared script. 

 

“Staff will identify the applicable substantive criteria which have also been listed in the 

staff report. These are the criteria the City Council must use in making its decision. All 

testimony and evidence must be directed toward these criteria or other criteria which you 

believe apply to the decision. Failure to raise an issue accompanied by statements or  

evidence sufficient to afford the City and parties involved an opportunity to respond to the 

issue would preclude an appeal to the Oregon Land Use Board of Appeals based on that  

issue.” 

 

For the benefit of the citizens, Mayor Forsythe read the Ordinance title into the record, 

“An ordinance amending Chapter 120 of the Dunes City Code of Ordinances entitled 

‘Business Licenses’ to apply to all businesses doing business within the City limits,” and 

asked if there was anyone in the audience who wished to comment on the Ordinance.  

 

Mayor Forsythe recognized Ms. Bonnie Allen. Ms. Allen asked how the citizens would 

know about the new requirement and how would citizens know that a vendor has a Dunes 

City business license. Mayor Forsythe pointed out that Dunes City residents would be  

instrumental in making sure that anyone they hired had a City license. City Administra-

tor/Recorder Mills noted that the City could send a letter to all residents and publish an ar-

ticle in the newsletter.  

 

Mayor Forsythe recognized Mr. Rory Hammond, who expressed some concern about 

which businesses would be required to be licensed by the City, would the requirement ap-

ply to insurance agents, delivery drivers, etc. There was some discussion about the City’s 

requirements for vendors to prove they are licensed by the State and have insurance. City 

Administrator/Recorder Mills suggested that Councilors could table further discussion to 

give her time to look into whether delivery services, for example, would be excluded. 

(01:13:00) 

 

Council President Meyer made a motion to table further discussion until Staff could 

do more research. Councilor Wells seconded the motion. The motion passed by 

unanimous vote.  



Dunes City 

City Council Meeting Minutes ~ Draft 

RO/20180711  Page 8 of 10 

Mayor Forsythe closed the public hearing at 7:16 pm.  

 

11. OLD BUSINESS 
 

A. Ordinance No. 249 amending Chapter 141 of the Dunes City Code of Ordinances regard-

ing Erosion Control by adding provisions that apply to all residential construction within 

the City Limits – Second Reading 

 

Mayor Forsythe opened the public hearing at 7:16 pm and, for the benefit of residents, 

read the Ordinance title into the record, “An ordinance amending Chapter 141 of the 

Dunes City Code of Ordinances entitled ‘Erosion and Sediment Control’ by adding provi-

sions that will apply to all residential construction within the City limits.” 

 

Mayor Forsythe asked if anyone in the audience wished to comment on the Ordinance. No 

one did and Mayor Forsythe closed the public hearing at 7:17 pm. (01:14:38)  

 

12. PUBLIC HEARING ON ORDINANCE NO. 249 AND DELIBERATION 

 

A. Ordinance No. 249 amending Chapter 141 of the Dunes City Code of Ordinances regard-

ing Erosion Control by adding provisions that apply to all residential construction within 

the City Limits 

 

There was some discussion about the origin of Ordinance No. 249, during which Counci-

lor Snow reported that she found the Council’s Rules of Procedure, Item 6.6, read in part, 

“Requests for ordinances: any member of the City Council may request the Mayor to have 

prepared a proposed ordinance with such ordinance to be placed on the agenda of the next 

regular meeting…” She questioned whether the proposed ordinance should have been in-

cluded in Councilors’ packets because it was not requested by the Council or the Mayor. 

(01:16:00) Mayor Forsythe explained that he agreed with the language in the Rules, but 

did not recall whether or not, or when, the Council discussed the need for this Ordinance 

and asked Staff to draft it. City Administrator/Recorder Mills pointed out that she had 

been asking for this kind of ordinance for some time because the City has ongoing issues 

with drainage and runoff onto roadways; she thought that the Council likely discussed the 

need during goal setting meetings. (01:19:00) 

 

Councilor Mallen objected to revisiting Ordinance No. 249 because the Council voted 

against it in the July meeting, and explained that the Ordinance adds another layer of regu-

lation on procedures the City already has in place. Councilor Orr recalled that the discus-

sion in the July meeting was that the original language could be modified, and this version  

contained modifications. He volunteered to work with City Administsrator/Recorder Mills 

on softer language. Council President Meyer recalled that in the July meeting, there was a 

discussion in which some of the Councilors agreed that there was a need for an ordinance 

like 249 to keep water that runs off properties from entering the lakes. (01:23:49)  

 

There was some further discussion after which Councilors generally agreed that they 

needed more time to consider the proposed language.  



Dunes City 

City Council Meeting Minutes ~ Draft 

RO/20180711  Page 9 of 10 

 

Councilor Montgomery made a motion to table further discussion until the August 

meeting. Councilor Wells seconded the motion. The motion passed by unanimous 

vote. (01:26:48) 

 

13. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

A. Held pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(h) to consult with counsel concerning the legal rights 

and duties of a public body with regard to current litigation or litigation likely to be filed 

 

Mayor Forsythe announced that the Council would go into Executive Session held pursu-

ant to ORS 192.660(2)(h) to consult with counsel concerning the legal rights and duties of 

a public body with regard to current litigation or litigation likely to be filed, and adjourned 

the regular session at 7:13 pm.  

 

Due to the nature of the subject matter to be discussed in the Executive Session, he asked 

Councilor Montgomery not to attend.  

 

Mayor Forsythe reconvened the regular session at 7:50. 

 

14. OLD BUSINESS 

 

A. Any action to be taken regarding items discussed in Executive Session (Reavis v. Dunes 

City) 

 

Councilor Orr made a motion to accept the Settlement Agreement as written. The 

motion was seconded by Councilor Mallen.  
 

Councilor Montgomery explained that he wished to keep the 4” pipe that is existing, but 

he would install a larger diameter as appropriate. Mayor Forsythe noted that the Agree-

ment stipulates a 4” pipe and that is what the City is agreeing to. 

 

The motion passed with five votes in favor. There was one abstention (Montgomery). 

 

15. CITIZEN INPUT ON ITEMS NOT LISTED ON THE AGENDA 

 

There was none. 

 

16. REPORTS 

 

A. Mayor’s Report: Mayor Forsythe did not have a report.  

  

B. Community Center Report: Councilor Wells reported that he would clean the dead moss 

off the roof of City Hall.  

 

 



Dunes City 

City Council Meeting Minutes ~ Draft 

RO/20180711  Page 10 of 10 

C. Water Quality Report: Council President Meyer reported that the water quality is still 

good. He went on to report that Mark Chandler is leaving the Water Quality Committee so 

the Committee will be looking for another volunteer to help with testing.  

 

D. Public Works Maintenance Supervisor’s Report: City Administrator/Recorder Mills  

reported that RFQs for work on Huckleberry Lane have been mailed and there will be a 

mandatory meeting of interested contractors to visit the site.   

 

E. Emergency Services Report: City Administrator/Recorder Mills reported that her report 

was included in the Councilors’ meeting packets.  

 

F. City Administrator/Recorder/Planning/Staff Report: City Administrator/Recorder Mills 

reported that: she sent a letter to Lane County Animal Control, who submitted an IGA for 

the Council to consider in the August meeting; she and the CwMH20 engineer visited the 

site where the water flow meter will be installed; she presented the Rebecca’s Trail grant 

proposal to State Parks and Recreation on June 19 and has since been informed that the 

award had been given to larger cities; and, Dunes City is seeking donations to repair the 

old sign at the Westlake Post Office.   

 

17. FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 

City Administrator/Recorder Mills announced that Administrative Assistant Linda Stevens 

submitted a letter of resignation that included monetary demands to be discussed in Executive 

Session. Councilors agreed to hold the Executive Session at 5:00 pm on July 19.  

 

Councilor Snow asked that the City follow procedures for submitting ordinances. Councilor 

Orr thanked the Planning Commission for their work on Ordinance No. 247. 

 

18. ADJOURNMENT  

 

Council President Meyer made a motion to adjourn. Councilor Mallen seconded the  

motion. The motion passed by unanimous vote. 

 

Mayor Forsythe adjourned the meeting at 8:02 pm.  

 

APPROVED BY THE DUNES CITY COUNCIL ON THE 8
th 

DAY OF AUGUST 2018 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Robert Forsythe, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jamie Mills, City Administrator/Recorder  



Dunes City 

City Council Special Session Minutes ~ Draft 

RO/201800719   Page 1 of 2 

CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL SESSION MEETING MINUTES ~ DRAFT 

JULY 19, 2018 AT 5:00 PM 

City Hall ~ 82877 Spruce St., Westlake, OR 

 

 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER  

 

Mayor Robert Forsythe called the July 19, 2018, Special Session of the Dunes City Council to 

order at 5:00 pm.  

 

2. ROLL CALL 

 

Roll Call was taken by City Administrator/Recorder Jamie Mills. 

 

Present:  Mayor Robert Forsythe, Council President Sheldon Meyer, Councilor Tom  

 Mallen, Councilor Robert Orr, and Councilor Susan Snow. 

 

Absent and Excused: Councilors Alan Montgomery and Duke Wells. 

 

Also Present: Administrative Assistant Rapunzel Oberholtzer.  

 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

All who were present stood for the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

4. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

 

Councilor Orr made a motion to approve the Agenda. Councilor Mallen seconded the  

motion. The motion passed by unanimous vote.  

 

5. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CORRESPONDENCE 

 

City Administrator/Recorder Mills read aloud from the list of announcements on the Agenda: 

 

A. The Citizens Advisory Committee meeting regarding the first three sections of Chapter 

155 of the Dunes City Code is scheduled for July 23, 2018, at 5:00 pm. The CAC is near-

ing completion of their review of these sections. 

 

B. The next Planning Commission meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, July 25, at 5:00 pm. 

 

C. On August 7, beginning at 6:00 pm, the Florence Police Department will be holding its 

National Night Out at Miller Park. There will be games, bounce houses, slides, and lots of 

fun for the entire family. 

These proceedings of the Dunes City Council were 

recorded and are on file at Dunes City Hall. Upon 

approval by the City Council, these minutes will be 

available online at www.DunesCity.com.  



Dunes City 

City Council Special Session Minutes ~ Draft 

RO/201800719   Page 2 of 2 

D. On August 25, from 10:00 am to 3:00 pm, West Lane Emergency Operations Group will 

be holding its annual Emergency Preparedness Expo at the Florence Events Center. 

 

6. CITIZEN INPUT ON ITEMS NOT LISTED ON THE AGENDA 
 

There was none. 

 

7. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

A. Held pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(h) to consult with counsel concerning the legal rights 

and duties of a public body with regard to current litigation or litigation likely to be filed. 

 

Mayor Forsythe announced that he would close the Special Session to go into Executive 

Session held pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(h) to consult with legal counsel concerning the 

legal rights and duties of a public body with regard to current litigation or litigation likely 

to be filed, and that only representatives of the news media and designated Staff would be 

allowed to attend Executive Session. Mayor Forsythe closed the Special Session at 5:04 

pm and reconvened the Special Session at 5:36 pm.  

 

8. OLD BUSINESS 
 

Councilor Mallen made a motion to accept the fact that Linda Stevens was in fact a full- 

time City of Dunes City employee as of July 2013, minus the waiting period. Councilor 

Snow seconded the motion. The motion passed by unanimous vote.  

 

9. FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 

City Administrator/Recorder Mills announced that the Siuslaw News will be publishing a  

special section to celebrate the 125-year anniversary of the City of Florence and there is an 

opportunity to place an ad in the special section. The Council took no action. 

 

10. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Council President Meyer made a motion to adjourn. Councilor Orr seconded the  

motion. The motion passed by unanimous vote. Mayor Forsythe adjourned the meeting at 

5:40 pm.  

 

APPROVED BY THE DUNES CITY COUNCIL ON THE 8
th 

DAY OF AUGUST 2018. 

 

_______________________________________ 

Robert Forsythe, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jamie Mills, City Administrator/Recorder  



$0.00
Business License $510.00
Copy Charges $0.00
Donations $0.00
Triathlon Sponsorships $1,020.00
Fines $115.25
Franchise Fee, Cable TV $0.00
Franchise Fee, PUD $4,910.04
Franchise Fee, Telephone $0.00
Interest $0.00
Lien Searches $25.00
Permits, Conditional Use $278.23
Permits, Boundary Line Adjustment (PUD) $0.00
Permits, Electrical $565.00
Permits, Excavating & Grading & Driveway $0.00
Permits, Manufactured Home Fees $0.00
Permits, Mechanical $109.00
Permits, Other (Inspections, LUCS, No Brushing, etc.) $105.00
Permits, Penalties $0.00
Permits, Plan Check Fees $0.00
Permits, Plumbing $97.00
Permits, Right of Way Use $0.00
Permits, Structural $0.00
Permits, Building Surcharge $150.00
Permits, State Surcharge $92.52
Permits, Vegetation / Tree Removal $0.00

PERMITS TOTAL $1,396.75
RTMP Grant $0.00

$600.00
Tax, Cigarette $135.61
Tax, Liquor (OLCC) $1,221.50
Tax, Oregon State Highway Apportionment $8,168.19
Tax, Lane County Motel Fund $1,336.47
Tax, School Excise $0.00
Water Rights Application Fees $0.00
Water Admin Fees $9,100.00

TOTAL $28,538.81

 

Septic Inspections

RECEIPTS OF THE SESSION: 7/08/2018 thru 8/01/2018

Building Rental



Best in the West Events, LLC $500.00
Campbell Productions $390.00

$98.91
$1,787.57

Century Link $315.29
Charter Business $0.00
COCARC (Most Volunteers at Tri-Du) $0.00
County Transfer & Recycling $0.00
CwM-H20 $4,091.98
DCBS Fiscal Services $0.00
DJ Miller Construction, Inc. (Kiechle Arm Rd) $0.00
Florence Events Center (power point rental) $25.00
Linda Stevens (travel reimbursement) $18.00
MCI/Verizon $46.44
Northwest Code Professionals $578.25
Oregon Department of Revenue $951.13
Oregon Unemployment Department Unit 2 $126.06
PERS $700.35
Quill $99.52
Robert Ybarra (lawn maintenance) $80.00
Siuslaw News $1,407.46
Speer Hoyt LLC  General $0.00

Speer Hoyt LLC Building Program Issue $0.00

Speer Hoyt LLC Reavis v DC $0.00
Speer Hoyt LLC Property Acquisition $0.00
Speer Hoyt LLC Street Repair $0.00

Speer Hoyt Total (estimated) $1,096.00
Steam Way of Florence (carpet and upholstry cleaning) $470.00
Terri English (Dunes City Home Services) $160.00
Travel Oregon/Oregon Tourism Commission (reimburse overpayment of grant funds) $24.99
U S Bank $690.69

Mayor's Dinner $231.35
Office Supplies $296.46
Postage $162.88

Vend West $0.00
West Coast Media Group $0.00
Wells Fargo Financial Leasing, Inc $185.25
Wobbe & Associates (Survey Huckleberry Ln) $991.25
Staff Wages $0.00
Employer Portion of Taxes
PERS

Total Employee Costs $0.00
Cardinal Services $0.00

$14,834.14 approved per motion, TOTAL $14,834.14

BILLS OF THE SESSION: 7/08/2018 thru 8/01/2018

                Mayor / Council President

Above bills in the amount of

Central Lincoln P.U.D. (City Hall)
Central Lincoln P.U.D. (Street Lights)

ATTEST: ______________________________________



























1 
 

City Administrator/City Recorder Report to City 
Council 
 
August 8, 2018 ~ Prepared by Jamie Mills 

 

 
 
 
There were 6 building permits issued in July:  4 electrical, 1 mechanical, and 1 plumbing, 
however, a number of parcels are being cleared for construction of new homes. 
  
The CAC met on July 23rd, where it finished its review of Chapter 155.1, .2, and .3.  The next 
CAC meeting will be August 20, 2018, at 5:00 pm, at which time the CAC will begin reviewing 
the written recommendation of the CAC to the Planning Commission.  Planning Commission 
met on July 25th, during which meeting they continued their review of Chapter 155.  The next 
Planning Commission meeting is scheduled for August 23, 2018 at 5:00 p.m. 
 
A mandatory contractors’ meeting was held regarding the Huckleberry Lane road project.  The 
deadline for submission of quotes was 3:00 p.m. on August 2nd.  At the time of this writing, the 
award of the job has not been made.  A new grant application was submitted for the next round 
of awards for repairs of the Parkway Drive “dip” (which is slowly collapsing and sliding into the 
drainage gully) and for Alder Drive widening, installation of erosion control measures, and 
installation of a turn-around for emergency vehicles. 
 
I met with representatives from FEMA regarding the new flood maps.  The impact on Dunes 
City is relatively light.  The City, however, will be required to adopt a new Ordinance regarding 
the flood maps and incorporating the provisions of new laws adopted by the State, which will 
mean an amendment to Land Use Code, thus requiring a CAC, followed by public hearings 
before the Planning Commission and the City Council, as well as measure 54 notice mailings and 
mandatory publication of notices in the newspaper.  There is a deadline for updating Code to 
accept the new flood zone codes, or the City will lose its flood insurance status, which will mean 
mortgage companies would deny funding mortgages for purchases of property in the City limits.  
The City will need to move quickly to identify who will prepare the draft Ordinance, and having 
the Ordinance move forward through the process. 
 
Administrative Assistant Linda Stevens has taken a position with the City of Lakeside.  Her last 
day with Dunes City was July 19, 2018.  As instructed by the City Council, I have submitted the 
requisite reports to PERS to correct the failure of the City to categorize Mrs. Stevens as a PERS 
employee since her date of hire in 2013.  I have conducted one interview for a replacement, 
however, the position will be changed to a non-PERS qualifying position for not more than 600 
hours per year of time worked. 
 
Dunes City hosted the Lane County Mayors’ Association meeting at Dunes City Hall on July 
26th.  A formal dinner was served to the Mayors in attendance. 
 



2 
 

Complaints as of August 1, 2018 have to do with road brushing and limbing.  Many residents of 
the City seem to believe the City’s rights-of-way are their property and that the City should not 
have a right to maintain its rights-of-way as the City deems fit – which is primarily for pavement 
protection and not for beauty.  Until such time as I receive directive from the City Council to the 
contrary, I have instructed our City Public Works Maintenance contractor to cease all road 
brushing and limbing unless a request is made by someone on the roadway for the work to be 
done. 
 
All financial materials requested by the auditor have been provided to the auditor for preparation 
of the last fiscal year financials. 
 
The ballot question referrals have all been submitted to and accepted by the County Elections 
Official and will appear on the general election ballot in November.  A reminder is given that 
individuals interested in running for office in Dunes City must have their applications in as soon 
as possible so I can provide the necessary reports and petition signature pages, which MUST be 
in to me not later than close of business on August 23, 2018.  
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
       Jamie Mills 
       City Administrator/Recorder 










	dc_agenda_cc_20180808
	Dunes City Council ~ Regular Meeting
	Wednesday, August 8, 2018 ~ 6:00 pm

	dc_minutes_cc_20180711_draft
	dc_minutes_ccss_20180719_draft
	Receipts of the Session 7.08.2018 thru 8.01.2018
	Sheet1

	Bills of the Session 8.8.2018
	Sheet1

	Animal Control IGA Materials for cc mtg 8.8l2018
	dc_report_es_2018.8l8 with attachments
	dc_report_cr_20180808
	City Administrator/City Recorder Report to City Council

	Correspondence 8.8.2018
	Calendars 2018.8l8 cc mtg

